ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 2, 2004
3:35 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 426

"An Act relating to the levy and collection of an assessnent on
certain tourismrelated and recreation-related goods and
services, to tourism marketing contracts, and to vehicle renta
taxes; and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 540
"An Act relating to workers' conpensation insurance rates; and
providing for an effective date."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 488

"An Act relating to actionable clains against state enployees;
relating to the state's defense and indemification of its
enpl oyees and former enployees with respect to clains arising
out of conduct that is wthin the scope of enploynent; anending
the Public Enploynent Relations Act regarding clains against the
state or state enployees; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 488(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 502

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2004



"An Act relating to dispensing opticians and di spensing optician
apprentices.”

- MOVED HB 502 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 542
"An Act relating to specialty construction contractors and to
construction contractor exenptions."”
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 426
SHORT TITLE: TOURI SM & RECREATI ON ASSESSMENT/ CAR TAX
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) KOTT

02/ 04/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 04/ 04 (H EDT, L&C, FIN

02/ 12/ 04 (H) EDT AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 12/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 12/ 04 (H M NUTE( EDT)

02/ 17/ 04 (H EDT AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 17/ 04 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

03/ 16/ 04 (H EDT AT 5:15 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 16/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 426( EDT) Qut of Committee
03/ 16/ 04 (H M NUTE( EDT)

03/ 18/ 04 (H EDT RPT CS(EDT) NT 5DP 1NR 1AM

03/ 18/ 04 (H) DP: DAHLSTROM KOTT, Cl SSNA, MCGUI RE,
03/ 18/ 04 (H HEI NZE; NR: CRAWORD, AM KOHRI NG
04/ 02/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 540

SHORT TI TLE: WORKERS COMPENSATI ON | NSURANCE RATES
SPONSOR(S): LABOR & COMVERCE

03/ 22/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 22/ 04 (H) L&C

03/ 31/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 31/ 04 (H <Bill Hearing Postponed to Fri. 4/2/04>
04/ 02/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 488
SHORT TI TLE: CLAI MS AGAI NST STATE EMPLOYEES
SPONSCOR(S) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2004



02/ 16/ 04 (H L&C, JUD

03/ 01/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 01/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d <Assigned to Subcnt e>
03/ 01/ 04 (H M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 02/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 502
SHORT TITLE: DI SPENSI NG OPTI CI ANS: BOARD & REGULATI ON
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) L&C, HES

03/ 31/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 31/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 31/ 04 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 02/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

SUE STANCLI FF

House Majority Ofice

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 426 on behalf of Speaker Kott,
sponsor of the bill

CH P THOVA
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 426.

JOSHUA ADAMS, Manager

Al aska Hotel and Bar

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 426.

BETTYE ADAMS, Omner

Al aska Hotel and Bar

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 426.

M KE W NDRED, Director of QOperations

Al aska Travel Adventures (ATA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 426.

DENNI' S Mc DONNEL L
ERA Hel i copters

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2004



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 426.

SCOTT REI SLAND, Owner

Denali Gizzly Bear Park

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 426.

RON PECK, President and Chief Executive Oficer

Al aska Travel |Industry Association (ATIA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 426.

ERI C DOMNEY, Menber

Board of Directors

Al aska W derness Recreation & Tourism Associ ati on (AWRTA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 462, but noted
concerns as wel | .

DAVE KARP, Vice President and Chief Operating Oficer

Hawai i an Vacati ons

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that HB 426 is a step in the
right direction.

KAREN ROG NA, President/ CEO

Al aska Hospitality Alliance (AHA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the concept for a
br oad- based hospitality and visitor industry self-assessnent to
be used exclusively for tourism marketing.

CRAI G NOOTTVEDT

Al aska National |nsurance Conpany

Seattl e, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that HB 540 is designed to bring
insurers and other key parties wth strong I|ocal Al askan
know edge back into the process as well as create a mni-
heari ng.

BARBARA THURSTON, | ndependent Consulting Actuary

Al aska National |nsurance Conpany

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 540, answered
questi ons.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2004



LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that she didn't have a problem
conceptually with the bill, but nentioned serious concerns wth
tinelines and other areas in the |egislation.

GAI L VO GTLANDER, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral - Statew de
Secti on Supervi sor,

Torts and Wrker's Conpensati on Secti on

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Depart ment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes enconpassed in CSHB
488, Version 23-GH2, 3/30/2004.

KRI STY BRAND, Presi dent

Opti ci ans Associ ati on of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 502.

JAMVES D. ROTHVEYER, Chairman

State Board of Dispensing Opticians

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 502.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-38, SIDE A
Number 0001

VICE CHAIR CARL GATTO called the House Labor and Comrerce
Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:35 p.m Representatives
Gatto, Dahlstrom Lynn, Rokeberg, Crawford, and Guttenberg were
present at the call to order. Representative Anderson arrived
as the neeting was in progress.

HB 426- TOURI SM & RECREATI ON ASSESSMENT/ CAR TAX

VICE CHAIR GATTO announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 426, "An Act relating to the levy and
collection of an assessnent on certain tourismrelated and
recreation-related goods and services, to tourism marketing
contracts, and to vehicle rental taxes; and providing for an
effective date."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2004



Nunmber 0078

SUE STANCLI FF, Staff to Speaker of the House Pete Kott, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 426 on behalf of Speaker Kott,
sponsor of the bill. She noted that before the committee is
CSHB 426(EDT). The bill provides for the levying and coll ection
of an assessnent on certain tourismrelated and recreation-
rel ated goods and services, she explained. The bill would |evy
a 2 percent assessnent on the tourismindustry in order to raise
the funds for tourism marketing and is a self-assessed tax, she
sai d. It is at the request of the tourism industry, which has
been asked many tinmes previously by the legislature to cone
forward with a self-assessed nechanism to be able to fund
touri sm marketi ng, she noted.

[ CHAI R ANDERSON arri ved. ]

M5. STANCLI FF nentioned that this nodified version of the bill
is a 2 percent tax, which does leave in the vehicle rental tax
that the legislature passed |ast year. She said that severa
i ssues have been raised about the tax related to hotel taxes,
especially seasonal rates. M. Stancliff noted that this tax is
nodel ed after the Alaska Seafood Marketing Institute (ASM)
nodel , which has worked very successfully.

M5. STANCLIFF said that she plans to offer several conceptua
anendnents and asked when the commttee prefers to have her do
t hat .

CHAI R ANDERSON suggested that Ms. Stancliff decide when to offer
t hem

M5. STANCLIFF said she prefers to offer them before the
testi nony.

Number 0320
MS. STANCLI FF expl ai ned that Conceptual Amendnent 1 would take

the 2 percent assessnent and reduce it to a 1 percent
assessnment, which is per the industry's request.

Number 0400

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 1,
whi ch would, on page 3, line 10, change "two percent” to "one
percent".

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN objected in order to ask a question. He
wondered why that change is being made. He stated that he is
not opposed to it, just wondering why.

M5. STANCLIFF replied that the industry requested that amount so
that it would be nore pal atabl e across the board.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if that amount is adequate to pronote
the travel industry association, and if it's not should it be
kept at 2 percent.

MS. STANCLI FF said Representative Gatto is right. The goal was
set to raise $20 mllion and 1 percent would only bring in $10
mllion. She said she does not know if that amount will neet
the needs of the travel industry and she deferred to soneone
fromthe Al aska Travel Industry Association (ATIA).

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO reported that he has talked to ATIA on this
i ssue and they said they needed $20 mlli on.

REPRESENTATI VE  LYNN suggested hearing from an i ndustry
representative before acting on the anmendnent.

Number 0607

CHAIR ANDERSON asked Representative Gatto to wthdrawn
Conceptual Anendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO w t hdr ew Conceptual Anendnent 1.
Number 0620

M5. STANCLIFF continued her testinony, and explained that
anot her anmendnent would reduce the industry mtch from 60
percent to 50 percent. Therefore, she requested that nenbers
from ATI A speak about their concerns before it is offered as an
amendnent .

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if there are any further questions for M.
Stancliff.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there are segnents of the
industry that aren't supporting this bill

M5. STANCLIFF replied yes, and specified that many hotels and

sone snmall recreation conpanies oppose [HB 426]. She said that
she has heard from other states that when there is a tax such as

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2004



a hotel tax, the hotel will report the rate as, "$75, plus tax"
and that has been an issue for sone folks. "Tourismis down and
now we're going to saddle our visitors with nore of a burden,”
is a concern she has heard, she reported. She said she has a
request into Legislative Legal and Research Services to find out
if it is true that Alaska is the only state that does not have a
touri smtax.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there is an analysis of hotel
taxes in Alaska conpared to other states in the Pacific
Nor t hwest .

MS. STANCLI FF said she did not know, but offered to find out.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if ferry and airplane tickets are
t axabl e.

Number 0828

M5. STANCLIFF said that was addressed in the House Special
Commttee on Economc Developnent, International Trade and
Tourism One of the concerns is that a lot of people in
Sout heast Al aska use the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS) as
their main node of transportation. There was a conceptual

anmendnent adopted to exenpt Al aska residents, but there was a
constitutional issue, so it was agreed that AMHS could offer a 2
percent discount to Alaska residents. As far as airlines, M.
Stancliff opined that because of federal regulations a discount
cannot be offered, except on small aircraft.

Nunmber 0907

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN inquired as to the kind of recreation
business with which Ms. Stancliff is involved.

M5. STANCLIFF replied that in her private |life she has a
backcountry excursion busi ness.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the noney fromthe tax would go to
mar ket the tourismindustry.

MS. STANCLI FF said yes.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN suggested that by going too far wth
mar keting, a dimnishing return results.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2004



M5. STANCLI FF responded that if this does not work there is a
mechani sm built into the bill that would turn off the self-
assessnent tax.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that it is a bal ance between spending
noney on nmarketing and on having reasonable prices for [tourism
packages] .

MS. STANCLI FF agreed, and added that it's dependent on effective
mar keti ng, which has been the case so far.

Nunber 1016

CH P THOVA testified in opposition to HB 426. Hs testinony is
as foll ows:

| magi ne being told by the governnment that you nust
advertise your product, even if you don't want to.
That's the issue before us today. So, consequently, |
maintain ny opposition to HB 426 on constitutional
grounds; the effect of this bill is to conpel those
bei ng assessed a tourism tax to subsidize speech with
whi ch they may di sagree.

According to very well-docunented, federal case |aw,
this bill violates the First Amendnent, which both
prevents governnent from prohibiting individuals from
speaki ng, and al so prevents governnent from requiring
them to speak

MR. THOVA provi ded exanpl es of nmany cases from the Suprene Court
and the 9th Crcuit Court of Appeals in his witten testinony.
He said it cones down to, "W can't have government collecting
taxes and going to an industry-sponsored group that's going to
be advertising." He pointed out that it does not |eopardize
ASM because no one has ever filed suit against it, but that
"this kind of a group that's just being fornulated right now,
t hough, will be challenged and it wll probably be brought to
sumary judgnent.” He said he wanted to bring that to the
commttee's attention.

Number 1145

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. Thoma is representing any
speci fic group.

MR. THOVA replied that he is testifying as an individual.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. Thoma has any vested interest
in this legislation.

MR. THOVA replied that he does not.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that there are certain social issues
that the governnment favors, but that he opposes, and yet he
still pays taxes. He asked if this issue is not the sane thing.

MR, THOVA said it is a hybrid of that. "You're taxing a select
group of people and you're taking that noney and you're using it
for speech, so it's governnent-supported speech.” He maintained
that so far the court has cone down against it.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that the governnment is collecting a |ot
of taxes in areas with which he disagrees.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the program was challenged,
would it be challenged from soneone inside or outside the
program

MR THOVA sai d outsi de.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if anyone inside ATIA disagrees
with this or if it speaks as one voi ce.

MR THOVA said he did not know if he wanted to nmake that
assunption and suggested that there would be testinony today
from menbers of ATIA He added that he does not plan on it
bei ng Thoma vs. the State of Al aska.

Number 1258

JOSHUA ADAMS, Manager, Alaska Hotel and Bar, said that he and
his staff wll be wvictimzed by this legislation, not
represented. He said that his advertising budget is mniml and
| ocal as 75 percent of his clientele are Al aska residents. He

opined that [HB 426] is philosophically wong because he is
being forced to speak and to pay soneone else to speak for him
which 1is contrary to the First Anmendnent. He called it
regressive to force this class of people, nostly "weekly”
wor ki ng people, to pay the tax.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked how rmuch hotel tax is in Juneau.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 2, 2004



MR. ADAMS said 12 percent; 5 percent sales tax and 7 percent
hot el tax.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that he has to think about what M.
Adans sai d. He guessed that this tax would do very well for
Anchorage and the [ Mtanuska-Susitna Valley], that don't have
tourists arriving on a cruise ship. He suggested that M. Adans
woul d be paying a tax to pronote tourismin the remainder of the
state. He asked if that is the way M. Adans sees it.

MR. ADAMS replied that is the way he sees it. He questioned the
benefit of advertising hotels in Juneau when the cruise ships do
not stay overnight.

CHAIR ANDERSON surmsed that M. Adans' point is that he is
opposed to the tax because the hotel clients are already paying
enough tax, and he would not be getting any direct benefit from
the advertisenment it purchases conpared to |arger conpanies in
different cities.

MR. ADAMS said he also personally opposes it because it is
regressive, it punishes the small businesses and forces themto
pay for the big businesses, and it is constitutionally wong.

REPRESENTATI VE GQUTTENBERG asked if M. Adans' hotel is a nmenber
of the trade associ ati on.

VR. ADAMS replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GQUTTENBERG asked if he feels that he has a voice
in that organization.

Nunmber 1448

BETTYE ADAMS, Owner, Al aska Hotel and Bar, opined that [HB 426]
is a "big Trojan horse.”™ She pointed out that the industry did
not ask for this; ATIA which is an organization that only sone
in the industry can afford to be a nenber of, asked for it. She
noted that she is a nmenber of ATIA but has no inpact in it.
Ms. Adans pointed out that she was not notified that this
| egi slation was comng up, and she was told that a majority of
the people at the convention agreed to this. She opi ned that
ATI A represents the cruise industry, big business, and people
who do not have to pay the tax.

VS. ADAMS characterized the  bill as "taxation wthout
representation,” and noted that it would help the Railbelt, not

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 2, 2004



Sout heast . She wondered what the adm nistrative costs will be
and opined that 1 percent is only a way [for the cruise
industry] to get its the "a foot in the door."

M5. ADAMS questioned the dedication of state funds for a
specific purpose and the surrendering of the power of taxation
contained in this bill. She referred to a nmeno from Legi sl ative
Legal and Research Servi ces.

Nunber 1767

CHAI R ANDERSON cl arified the description of dedicating funds and
havi ng no direct accountability for them

M5. ADAMS maintained that ASM's npdel is not constitutional
either, and it will cone to the court.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM requested a copy of the nmeno from
Legislative Legal and Research Services to which M. Adans
referred.

Number 1837

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked for «clarification about the
state not being able to give away its authority to tax.

M5. ADAMS replied that is in the Legislative Legal and Research
Services' nenp that is being duplicated for the conmttee. She
explained that if ATIA's board assesses the 1 percent tax, and
then says, "Ch, it went into the general fund and not to us."
And then if they stop assessing the tax, or change it, that is
the legislature delegating its right to tax to soneone else,
whi ch is unconstitutional, she opined.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it's M. Adans' inpression that
woul d happen.

M5. ADAMS replied yes. There is a clause that if the noney
should sonehow go into the general fund, the tax would be
stopped. She called that "legislating."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that all taxes are typically
regressive. He asked if Ms. Adans would be so concerned if the
tax was based on the exact anount of benefit obtained.
Restating the question he asked, "If you got a fair deal, would
you obj ect?"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 2, 2004



M5. ADAMS replied that she does not think a fair deal 1is
possi bl e because the private sector can do a better job than
government can. She pointed out that the tax is also regressive
toward the people who stay in her hotel, which are nostly
Al askans and peopl e who work for the tourist industry.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the Railbelt is not tax-free.
Nunmber 1992

M KE WNDRED, Director of Operations, Alaska Travel Adventures
(ATA), said that one of the reasons the change was nmade from 1
percent to 2 percent is because Juneau has a fairly high bed and
sal es tax conbination already. He reported that npbst bed taxes
already work exactly as this assessnent would, to bring in
mar keting dollars. He maintained that the ATIA board is
representative of a good cross section of businesses. He spoke
in favor of HB 426, saying it would be a good opportunity for
busi ness to fund marketing.

Nunber 2178

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that the cruise industry is not
paying nuch in taxes at all. He asked if they are exenpt from
this tax.

MR. WNDRED replied that they are exenpt for the portion of the
crui se. He said there is a commtnment from the cruise industry
to help with the match for this tax.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked if ATIA had polled its nenbership on
I ssues.

MR. WNDRED said that it depends on the issue. This issue has
gone through different phases as to what it is going to be, and
it was brought up at the convention and everyone got a chance to
speak on it. There wasn't a vote, and the ability to stay
fl exi bl e has been inportant, he said.

CHAI R ANDERSON spoke about his parents who own an RV rental
conpany in Anchorage, who, along with other car rental agencies,

make up a large group that opposes the city rental tax. He
related that there is a fear that any tax would be the start of
the "slippery slope.” The hope that any advertising as a result

of the tax would cone back to help the conpany, although the
concern is that it mght not.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 2, 2004



MR. WNDRED highlighted that the bill is witten so that the
board has control over what happens, so that if the noney went
away fromthe marketing into the general fund, a 51 percent vote
coul d change that.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about the legality of what M.
Wndred just said and if anyone could address it.

CHAI R ANDERSON nanmed the w tnesses and determ ned that none are
able to discuss the | egal aspects of the issue.

TAPE 04-38, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked M. Wndred which RV park ATA owns in
Anchor age.

MR. W NDRED replied Ship Creek Landi ng RV Park.
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what it costs to belong to ATIA

MR WNDRED said $350 and up, depending on the size of the
busi ness.

Nunmber 2364

MR. W NDRED suggested changing "two percent"” to "one percent" on
page 3, line 14 of the bill, to agree with Conceptual Amendnent
1.

Number 2325

DENNI S McDONNELL, ERA Helicopters, related that he has had a | ot
of experience in the tourist industry. He said it has been
increasingly difficult to market to foreign countries because of
the expense, an area in which ATIA can help, especially for
smal | er businesses. He said he feels the 1 percent tax is good
for aviation businesses. He pointed out that even though the
cruise industry does not pay the tax, it brings up all of the
peopl e who do. He spoke strongly in favor of the 1 percent tax,
but not the 5 percent tax listed in another bill

Number 2198
SCOTT REI SLAND, Omer, Denali Gizzly Bear Park, reported that
busi ness has not been good for the independent traveler. In the

past three years there has been a 13-17 percent decline in
occupation rate, which is representative of canpgrounds around

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 2, 2004



the state, and is of mmjor concern, he said. He noted that he,
as a snmall business owner, has a limted marketing budget and
depends on ATIA to help out with marketing needs such as the
German tourist market. He reported that in the Lower 48 the
canpground business is boom ng, whereas Alaska's market needs
hel p. He said he would be happy to collect an additional 1
percent tax if it goes toward tourism marketing.

Nunber 1964

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that in the Lower 48 there are few
pl aces where it is safe or advisable to "boon dock"” w thout
going to an established park. In Alaska there are a lot of
pl aces to canp. He wondered if that could be a reason why the
canpgrounds and RV parks are not as full here as they are in the
Lower 48.

MR. REISLAND replied that boon docking has been an issue, and
currently 16 percent of independent canpers who cone to Al aska
boon dock, which does have an inpact on occupancy rate. He said
that problem was closed down in Denali National Park and
Preserve by putting up signs. He attributed the decline of 13-
17 percent as a result of people not comng to Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what M. Reisland' s budget for
advertising would be if ATIA was not in existence.

MR. REI SLAND said his famly took a 50 percent cut in salary and
was making less than a first year teacher. He said his
mar keti ng budget is about $4,000. The price for one nice ad in
the Lower 48 is $45, 000, he added.

Number 1757

RON PECK, President and Chief Executive Oficer, Alaska Travel
| ndustry Association (ATIA), reported that ATIA has been worKking
very closely recently wth various travel organizations and
visitors' bureaus around the state to jointly craft a conprom se
to bring before the legislature, which has garnered broader
i ndustry support. The nodified recommendations call for a 1
percent assessnment on the following tourismrelated sales: sale
of land and water transportation services such as sane day
scenic and sightseeing tours, sale of recreation and adventure
services including guided rafting, kayaking, canoeing, hiking,
wal ki ng tours, and fishing charters, |ease rentals of passenger
RV vehicles, accommodations including hotels, notels, and B &

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 2, 2004



Bs, sale of marine highway and railroad passenger fares,
| odgi ng, and tourismrelated gifts.

VR. PECK continued to say that this revenue wuld be
suppl emented by continuing contributions that are already
received, but at a lesser anmount from the follow ng: matching
funding fromthe state, donmestic marketing in organizations such
as conventions and visitors' bureaus, ATIA cooperative marketing
program revenues raised by advertising and narketing, and the

cruise industry. The ATIA board supports this approach for
several reasons: it nmakes Al aska's market nore conpetitive; it
is less burdensome on snall businesses; and it is broad-based,
he said. M. Peck <concluded by saying that the revenue
collected will stay with the industry for marketing support.
Nunber 1624

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that one of his concerns is that he
has been told by nenbers of ATIA that a surcharge would not be
wor kabl e. He asked M. Peck to respond.

MR. PECK sai d he does not understand the question.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that the bill provides for
taxation through the Department of Revenue and it seens to him
that the legislature could authorize ATIA to provide for a
surcharge and have it collected by ATIA and made voluntary.
Therefore, the state wuld not have to be involved wth
collecting the tax and would not have to pay $2.4 - $2.6 nillion
in order to collect $4.8 million. He called that crazy.

MR. PECK related his belief that people won't pay a voluntary
sur char ge.

Nunber 1541

ERIC DOMEY, Menber, Board of Drectors, Alaska WIderness
Recreation & Tourism Association (AWRTA), noted that although he
is also the Vice President of Marketing for Denali Lodges, he is
representi ng AWRTA today. He inforned the commttee that AWRTA
is an association of alnbst 200 small tourism business, nost of
which are w | derness dependent. M. Downey said that AWRTA
supports the revised 1 percent assessnent as proposed by ATIA
However, AWRA would prefer that this existing Ilegislation

include a vote to turn on and off the assessnent. Furt her nore,
AVWRTA woul d prefer the vote to be based on one vote per business
rather than one vote per dollar. M. Downey related that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 2, 2004



al t hough AWRTA doesn't believe that it's fair that the cruise
industry isn't subject to this assessnent, the assessnent is too
critical for the industry as a whole to be del ayed by the cruise
i ndustry's exenption. He further related that AWRTA is pleased
that the cruise industry has volunteered to contribute $1
mllion annually, but AWRTA urges the legislature to consider a
separate but simlar 1 percent tax on the cruise industry, which
woul d generate about $5 million annually.

Nunber 1468

DAVE KARP, Vice President and Chief Operating Oficer, Hawaiian
Vacations, inforned the conmttee that he is a lifetinme Al askan
and the forner executive director of Al aska Tourism Marketing
Council, the predecessor organization to the ATIA. Wth regard
to the conprom se that has taken the legislation from 2 percent
to 1 percent, M. Karp specified that the conprom se happened
over the last 10 days and through the efforts of many different
organi zati ons com ng together and having constructive dial ogue.

"It is ... fairly rare that we all come to the table in
agreenent on sonething, and I think that it's representative of
a good-faith effort that was put forth,” he said. Thi s
| egislation is about the tourism industry paying it's own
mar keti ng costs. He noted that this year, his conpany wll
bring 13 airplane | oads of Japanese tourists to Al aska and each
of those visitors will pay this new assessnent. He submtted

that this assessnment is a step in the right direction.
Nunber 1322

KAREN ROG NA, President/CEO, Al aska Hospitality Alliance (AHA),
informed the commttee that AHA includes the Al aska Hotel &
Lodging Association and the Alaska Restaurant & Beverage
Associ ati on. Ms. Rogina related support for the concept for a
br oad- based hospitality and visitor industry self-assessnent to
be used exclusively for tourism marketing. The aforenenti oned
is acconplished by HB 426 at the 1 percent |evel. She not ed
that originally AHA opposed HB 426 at the 2 percent level. This
1 percent assessnment and other anticipated contributions from
the industry, as nentioned by M. Peck, is viewed as the broad-
based solution that has been sought. Over the |ast several
years, the rate of growmh of the visitor industry has declined
comm serate with the amount of tourism marketing funding from

the state. It has |long been recognized that in order to conpete
in the national and international market place, a significant
increase in advertising nust occur. She acknow edged that any
plan will have varying degrees of benefits for various

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 2, 2004



busi nesses, the goal was to establish the npst broad-based
sol uti on possi bl e. As stated earlier, that seens to have been
acconplished at the 1 percent level along with the other naned
fundi ng sources fromthe industry groups.

Nunber 1219

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG requested that M. Rogina explain the
difference between the 1 percent and the 2 percent assessnent
and how divisive that is.

M5. ROG NA explained that the 1 percent conprom se occurred
partly due to the fact that statewide hotels currently

contribute over $46 mllion in bed tax, sales tax, and real
property tax. In light of the aforenmentioned $46 mllion
contribution, the 2 percent was viewed as too nuch of a
contribution and thus led to a nore broad-based solution. The

| egislation and the conpromse, which includes the other
contributions, made the 1 percent a fair broad-based sol ution.

Nunber 1147

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the public hearing on HB 426 woul d
be held open and woul d be brought back before the commttee next
week. In response to Representative CQuttenberg, Chair Anderson
agreed to have staff request from Legislative Legal and Research
Services information regarding taxes and distribution of the
pendi ng cases.

[HB 426 was hel d over. ]

HB 540- WORKERS' COVPENSATI ON | NSURANCE RATES

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 540, "An Act relating to workers' conpensation
i nsurance rates; and providing for an effective date.”

Number 1057

CRAI G NOOTTVEDT, Al aska National |nsurance Conpany, explained
that HB 540 establishes a mini-hearing and other procedures for
the filing, reviewing, and approval of workers' conpensation
| oss cost. Loss costs are the projected costs of workers'
conpensation claim benefits in Alaska and constitute the | argest
conponent of workers' conpensation rates. Loss costs apply to
all insurers and the Al aska assigned risk pool. M. Noottvedt
provided the followng analogy, "Wrkers' conpensation |o0ss

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 2, 2004



costs are the raw material costs of the workers' conpensation
system ™" He noted that Alaska law requires that workers

conpensation |oss costs be neither excessive nor inadequate.
The current system for filing, reviewing, and approving | oss
costs involves the followng two parties: Nat i onal Council on
Conpensation Insurance (NCCl), a national filing organization
based in Florida, and the Al aska D vision of |nsurance.

MR.  NOOTTVEDT explained that NCCI conpiles data into its
conputers, reviews the data with actuaries based in Florida and
Southern California, and then makes its filing with the director
[of the Alaska Dvision of | nsur ance] who approves or
di sapproves the filing. He specified that the current process
doesn't provide for any active involvenent of insurers or other
interested parties actually doing business in Al aska. The
af orenenti oned, he noted, was not always the system Until the
early 1990s other key parties with |local Alaska know edge,
i ncl udi ng i nsurers, enpl oyers, and brokers were active
participants in the review and approval process through the
Classification and Rating (C&R) Committee. However, the
af orenenti oned system was abandoned due to heightened anti-trust
concerns. This legislation is designed to bring insurers and
other key parties with strong |ocal Al askan know edge back into
t he process.

Nunber 0922

MR. NOOTTVEDT turned to the question of what's wong with the
current system The system hasn't been working for sone tine

and workers' conpensation |oss cost has been seriously
i nadequate and has contributed to a growing crisis in the Al aska
wor kers' conpensation system he expl ai ned. He specified that
i nadequate loss cost results in the followng three problens.
One, insurers lose noney. In fact, the director of the D vision

of Insurance has recently been showi ng |egislators that workers'
conpensation insurers have been losing a lot of noney in Al aska
for a nunber of years. He noted that although inadequate |oss
costs aren't the sole reason for recent carrier insolvencies and
the Al aska Insurance CGuaranty Association (Al GA) ness, they have
been a contributor.

MR. NOOTTVEDT turned to a honebuilder anal ogy. He expl ai ned
that the honebuilder first determ nes the raw material cost, the
| abor costs, and profit. After the aforenentioned the
honebui | der sells the hone and nmakes the profit. However, what
if the material supplier cones to the honebuil der the next year
saying that the raw material costs increased by 3 percent and

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 2, 2004



thus tells the honebuilder that he or she has to pay that 3
percent increase, and the sane scenario is played out year after
year. The aforenmentioned is how inadequate |oss cost can worKk.
In the year the loss cost is charged, one is told those costs
are adequat e. However, if they're determ ned to be inadequate,
the charges can continue. Fromthe workers' conpensation public
filings of 2001-2004 a chart was devel oped denonstrating the
| oss costs for nedical indemity conponents of |oss cost. The
af orenentioned, entitled "Conparison of the Utinmte Average
I ndemmity per Tinme Loss O aim Between 2001, 2002, and 2004 NCCI
Filings," was shared with the Division of Insurance. Each of
the lines on the chart sinply took the filings nmade by NCC and
the data points for the indemity cost and the nedical cost.
"What happens to the insurers then is they go back and say,
'Qops' each year that those itens cost nore. Even though you
already charged all the premum you can get for those prior
years, we got it wong; you ve got greater |osses that you're
having to pay for and you cannot get additional premum" he
expl ai ned. The aforenentioned is a serious financial problem
for insurance conpanies and it has played a role in why AIGA is
struggling wth workers' conpensation insolvencies today.

Number 0690

MR. NOOTTVEDT turned to the second problem caused by |oss cost
i nadequacy, which is that when carriers |ose noney they slow
down and even stop witing workers' conpensation business in
Al aska. The aforenmentioned results in enployers having no
choice but to nove into the nore costly Al aska Wrkers

Conmpensati on Assigned Ri sk Pool, which has exploded in growth by
over five fold to nearly $50 mllion in the |last few years. The
[ Al aska Workers' Conpensation Assigned Ri sk Pool] is approaching
25 percent of Alaska's total workers' conpensation market, which
is one of the largest and worst market share percentages in the

nation for an assigned risk pool. Moreover, because the [Al aska
Workers' Conpensation Assigned Risk Pool] nust use the sane
i nadequate loss <cost for its rates, it has been [|o0sing

tremendous anounts of noney over recent years. Those |osses are
passed on to insurers, which worsens the negative spiral.

MR. NOOTTVEDT turned to the third problem caused by inadequate
|l oss cost, which is that enployers are eventually hit with a
| arge shock rate increase in one year. Enpl oyers can't easily
pass through shock rate increases into their costs of goods and
services. [Passing through shock rate increases] could probably
be achieved if there were nodest increases over a nunber of
years.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 2, 2004



MR. NOOTTVEDT expl ai ned that HB 540 works to renedy the problem
by inproving the public information exchange anong all the
wor ker s’ conpensati on st akehol ders. Furt her nor e, t he
| egislation nakes NCCI nore accessible and nore accountable
through a mni-hearing process that is attended by Al askan
insurers, enployers, and others who better understand what 1is
occurring in Alaska. This legislation works because it requires
the division to detail all of its findings and conclusions in a
witten order when a filing is approved or disapproved. M.

Noott vedt acknow edged that determning |loss cost isn't easy to
do because the division and NCCl are predicting tonorrow s costs
usi ng yesterday's data. In fact, the 2005 filing will be based
on 2000-2002 policy year data. This legislation will help them
do a better |ob. He noted that to use 2002 data to [make
predi ctions for 2005] neans that NCCl nust nake a nunber of

assunptions and select key trends. However, NCCI is only
confortable making assunptions and selecting trends based on
what it considers to be visible fromthe data, data that is old.

By contrast, Al aska insurers have nmuch nore than what is visible
in 2002 and older policy years. By the tinme of the filing next

fall, Alaska insurers will have already lived through 2003 and
nost of 2004. There w Il have been experience in new claim
trends, such as new nedical treatnents and new drugs and the
costs for both; new rulings fromthe Wrkers' Conpensation Board
and the courts and the affects on the workers' conpensation
system Al aska insurers will have seen many of devel opnents
that inpact the current loss cost in Al aska. As with the old
C&R Conmittee, insurers operating in Alaska are in a good
position to provide extrenely valuable input to the workers'

conpensati on | oss cost revi ew and anal ysi s process.

Furthernore, M. Noottvedt opined that enployers and other
interested parties can contribute useful trend information into

t he wor ker s’ conpensati on | oss cost revi ew process.
Addi tionally, the mni-hearing process and tinely public
disclosure of all workers' conpensation loss cost filing
information will raise the general awareness and understanding
of the true cost benefits under Al aska's workers' conpensation
system The aforenentioned will create a greater resource for

considering any needed inprovenents to Alaska's workers'
conpensati on system by everyone, including the |egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG inquired as to the definition of |oss
cost.

Number 0318

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 2, 2004



BARBARA  THURSTON, | ndependent Consulting Actuary, Al aska
Nat i onal Insurance Conpany, explained that l|oss cost is the
portion of the prem um that goes to pay clains. The 1 oss cost
is exclusive of the portion of the premum that pays insurance
conpany expenses, conm ssion, or profit. She, too, acknow edged
that the claim portion is the hardest part to predict, which is
why the data from many insurance conpanies 1S aggregated by

NCCI . In further response to Representative Rokeberg, M.
Thurston addressed the graph entitled, "Conparison of the
Utimte Average Indemity per Time Loss Caim Between 2001,
2002, and 2004 NCCI Filings." She highlighted that above 1994

there are four different points on the graph and those are
different estimates, ultimte average cost per claim from NCCl.
The term "ultimte"” means once everything is paid, which may be
many years for workers' conpensation. She clarified that the
triangle in the bottomis the estimate of the final average | oss
cost per claimfor 1994, which was nade in 2001. She confirned
that the aforenentioned is used to build up the rate filings.
The other objects refer to each year after 2001 when the NCC
says that the 1994 estimates were wong and should have been
hi gher. Ms. Thurston said that it's expected that there will be

errors in these estinmates. Theoretically, the errors should
junp around and be a little high one year and a little |ow
anot her vyear. However, this graph illustrates a consistent

under esti mati on.

MR. NOOTTVEDT renarked that although the graph illustrates that
it's leveling off in 1999-2001, if this trend continues, the
next filings wll be corrected up even nore. The leveling off
only occurs because that's where the prediction is now.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG turned to the 2004 filing on the graph
and asked if the back years estinate the actual cost.

M5. THURSTON replied yes, and clarified that as part of the 2004
filing the old years are reviewed and the average cost in those
old years is estimated. She confirmed that the nunbers for the
past years are nore accurate because nore tine has passed.

MR. NOOTTVEDT highlighted that unfortunately the premium has to
be charged based the year [the | oss cost estimate] is set.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG related his wunderstanding that M.
Noottvedt's testinony was that next year only the data from the
past three years wll be reviewed and there's a big gap.

M5. THURSTON confirmed that there is a del ay.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 2, 2004



Nunmber 0059

REPRESENTATI VE  GUTTENBERG surm sed then that these are
guesstimates with regard to what will be paid out in clainms over
the years. Sone clains can be nmany years old, he noted.
Therefore, these rates don't seemto be self-correcting and thus
one can't, the next year, make a charge because the estimte has
i ncreased rather "you get recharged on sonething that happened
| ast year."

M5. THURSTON clarified that in insurance it's not permtted to
recoup past | osses.

TAPE 04-39, SIDE A

MR. NOOTTVEDT reiterated the need to have nore current data
[fron] people living in Alaska who see the trends in Al aska and
to put that in the review process for NCCI and the director to
consider. He remnded the conmttee that the aforenentioned was
done under the C&R Committee system which hasn't been avail able
to the industry and the division for over a decade. |In response
to Representative Quttenberg, he confirmed that [putting the C&R
Comm ttee system back in place is what is being [proposed with
this legislation].

Number 0063

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that the C&R Commttee was
di sbanded due to fears of anti-trust actions. He asked if the
af orenentioned fears "will out in case law." He inquired as to

why this could be acconplished now.

MR. NOOTTVEDT clarified that it's a different system due to the
inclusion of the public hearing and question and answer
[ period]. He pointed out that the C& Conmttee was different
in its process, including NCCI bringing a range of rates to the
C&R Committee, which would set the filing for the division.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surmised then that the C&R Commttee
actually participated in the ratenmaking process through
recommendat i on.

MR. NOOTTVEDT agreed and enphasized that due to anti-trust fears

Al aska has shifted from a ratenaking process to a |oss cost
filing practice. Therefore, "we" are no longer dealing with the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 2, 2004



actual setting of the final rates, but rather wth the
underlying raw material costs.

Number 0235

LINDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Departnent of
Community & Econom c Developnent, said that she would only
address the process in this legislation, not the conplexities of
r at emeki ng. However, she noted her belief that the ratenaking
process could becone nore open. Therefore, she said she is
willing to accommpdate a nethod of allowing nore input and
review. "So, on the surface | don't have a problem conceptually
with the bill," she stated. However, she nentioned serious
concerns with tinelines and other areas in the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested that Ms. Hall could nmake sone
reconmendations to the commttee and the sponsor.

M5. HALL agreed to do so.
CHAI R ANDERSON announced that HB 540 woul d be hel d over.

HB 488- CLAI M5 AGAI NST STATE EMPLOYEES

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 488, "An Act relating to actionable clains
agai nst state enployees; relating to the state's defense and
indemmification of its enployees and fornmer enployees wth
respect to clainms arising out of conduct that is wthin the
scope of enploynent; anmending the Public Enploynment Relations
Act regarding clains against the state or state enployees; and
providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 0392

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to adopt CSHB 488, Version 23-
GH2, 3/30/2004, as the working docunent. There being no
obj ection, Version 23-GH2, 3/30/2004, was before the commttee.

Nunber 0429

GAI L VO GTLANDER, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral - Statew de
Section Supervisor, Torts and W rker's Conpensation Section,
Cvil Dvision (Anchorage), Departnent of Law, explained that
when the commttee last heard this legislation, March 1, 2004,
there were basically two aspects to this legislation. The first
was the certification process that converted clains against

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 2, 2004



state enployees into clains against the state. The second
aspect was to have one standardized statute that addressed the
state's obligation for defense and indemity of state enployees
when individually sued. The legislation before the commttee
now renoves the second aspect because of objections from the
Public Safety Enployees Association (PSEA) wth regard to
differences between the [legislation's] | anguage and the
| anguage in PSEA's collective bargaining agreenents. Therefore,
the legislation before the commttee only addresses the first
aspect, as described earlier. She noted that the first aspect
is in addition to an enployee's rights for defense and indemity
that nmay be included in the collective bargai ni ng agreenents.

CHAI R ANDERSON recall ed that a PSEA representative had concerns
with regard to that and wanted to work wwth Ms. Voigtlander. He
al so recalled that Senator Bunde nmade an amendnent. He asked if
this version is conparable to that Senate change.

M5. VO GTLANDER said the version before the commttee is exactly
the same [as the Senate conpanion, CSSB 338(STA)]. The PSEA
wthdrew its objection to [CSSB 338(STA)], which is reflected in
a March 23, 2004, letter from M. D Am co, PSEA, to the chair of
the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

CHAIR ANDERSON opined that CSHB 488 works out the state
enpl oyees' and the public safety enployees' concern, which he
said satisfied him

Nunmber 0600

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report CSHB 488, 23-GH2,
3/ 30/ 2004, out of commttee with individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
488(L&C) was reported from the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Comm ttee.

HB 502- DI SPENSI NG OPTI C ANS: BQOARD & REGULATI ON

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 502, "An Act relating to dispensing opticians
and di spensi ng optician apprentices.”

Nunber 0653
KRI STY BRAND, President, Opticians Association of Al aska,

testified that she was licensed in both glasses and contact
| enses. She st at ed:

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 2, 2004



A few years ago the legislature passed a bill that
changed a system that had worked for 30 years, and
that system was the training of apprentices in the

field of opticianry. From 1973 until 2002 we were
required to study for 6,000 hours to becone an
opti ci an. In 2001 that standard was |owered to 1,800
hour s. At 1,800 we would be one, if not the | owest

state, in the union in ternms of training.

The bill before you rectifies this problem It
increases the requirenents for training; it adopts the
United States Departnent of Labor's apprenticeship
program as the formal educational conponent for
training apprentices in Al aska. This program sets out
specific gquidelines for training, it sets out a
progressively increasing wage scal e based on the hours
conpleted and based on the percentage of the
journeyman | evel, which was cal culated by the federal
Departnent of Labor.

Upon conpletion of the training program the U S
Departnent of Labor would issue a certificate of
conpletion to be presented to the state of Al aska for
licensing. Once licensed, the credentials can then be
taken to the University of Alaska, where they wll
allow credit for each portion of the license, that can
be wused towards an Associate's Degree in applied
opti cs.

This program is also beneficial to enployers, as
there's a financial incentive for hiring unenployed
people and training them in our field, and there are
al so federal grants that enployers can apply for to
help offset the costs for apprenticeship wages. The
U S. Departnment of Labor also has a school-to-work
| i nkage program where high school seniors can train
part-tinme in opticianry to bridge the gap between high
school and worKk.

Qur association has a notto and that notto is that "we
are Alaska's opticians, wunited in vision" and that
vision is a system where we can all continue to
provide the quality of services to Alaska's consuners,
and that we set an exanple for all the other states,
whet her they are licensed or not. Al askan consuners
deserve the best.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD recal | ed previous testinony stating that
very few of the apprentices in Al aska becone |icensed opticians.
He wondered how to get nore people to graduate from the
apprenticeshi p program

M5. BRAND said the problem could be seen as anyone working in an

optician's office, including clerks and sales people, were
required to sign up for the apprenticeship program whether or
not this was their career goal. Senate Bill 270 corrected this

probl em by creating the classification of optician's assistants.
She felt that after the statutes reflect these changes the
people signed up as apprentices in the US. Departnent of
Labor's apprenticeship program wll be the career opticians.
She commented that the system has been broken for a long tine
and her association is helping to nend it.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG conplinented Ms. Brand for her clear
testi nony.

Number 0929

JAMES D. ROTHVEYER, Chai r man, State Board of D spensing
Opticians, testified in support of HB 502. He listed severa

benefits for the public, including increasing the tine
requi renents for apprenticeship training back up to the nationa
average for this profession. HB 502 brings Al aska opticianry
statute into agreement with existing statutes, and clears up
conflicting definitions of a contact |enses prescription. He
stated that this bill allows for a nmechanism to |I|icense

experienced opticians comng from other states if they can
present their license or proof of advanced certification.

MR. ROTHMEYER stated that this bill nmandates that the federa
Department of Labor assune the admnistration of the optician
apprenticeship program thereby reducing the state's costs. He
noted that the Board of Dispensing Opticians was created in
1973, but they have been unable to test for technical conpetency
since SB 270 passed in 2002. House Bill 502 would create
trained, licensed, conpetent, professionals who would take
responsibility for dispensing eyeglasses and contact | enses.

Nunber 1048

CHAIR ANDERSON noted there were salient argunents from out of
state but that he was going to defer to Al askan associ ations

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- April 2, 2004



the Alaska Board of D spensing Opticians and the Opticians
Associ ation of Al aska.

Nunber 1072

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report HB 502 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 502 was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Commttee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:20 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- April 2, 2004



